
BOH Minutes 05-06-13  Page 1 of 3 

Board of Health 
Meeting Minutes 

May 6, 2013 
  
Members Present:    Staff Present: 
Tom Kinzer, Co-Chair    Heidi Porter, Director 
Bea Brunkhorst, Co-Chair   Mary Firestone, Recording Secretary 
Sarah Thompson    School nurses:       
Kevin Wormstead Kathy Webster, Tracy Fernald, Carol Eaton, 
Anita Raj Nancy Thorsen, and Joyce Towle 
 Also Attending: 
 Amy Lloyd, Planning Board 
 Karen Bragaw, Bedford Citizen 
 Carol Amick, Bedford Citizen  
  
The meeting was called to order at 7:15 P.M.   Dr. Brunkhorst chaired the meeting. 
 
Minutes: 
Mr. Wormstead moved to accept the minutes of the March 4, 2013, Board of Health meeting, as 
written.  Mr. Kinzer seconded the motion.  Vote count: 5-0 
 
Discussion with School Nurses: 
Ms. Thorsen said that Body Mass Index (BMI) data collection was started in fall 2012; this year there 
was an increase in population in the 10th grade to 237, up from 196 the previous year; last year, 30% of 
the boys were overweight or obese; this year it was down to 26%; for girls, it had been 24% and was 
now at 25.5%.  Ms. Eaton said that there was not much change for 7th grade students, but more data 
was needed.  She said that Bedford is typically significantly lower than state levels, by as much as 
10%.   
Ms. Thompson asked the nurses whether they thought that obesity is the biggest public health problem 
in the schools.  Ms. Webster said that mental health issues represent the biggest problem.  Ms. Eaton 
said that depression is an important problem, leading to a need for increase in the numbers of school 
counseling staff.  Ms. Thorsen noted the incidence of ‘cutting’.  Ms. Eaton mentioned suicidal ideation.  
Ms. Porter said that CHNA 15 grant funding is being sought to train school and town staff who work 
with youth on Mental Health First Aid; she said that the #1 community health problem in Concord was 
identified as anxiety due to academic and athletic pressure as well as economic pressures.  Ms. Porter 
said that she had attended a two-day clinic for non-clinical personnel on mental health problems; there 
may be programs available for people working with youth.  Ms. Eaton said that she would like to see 
an in-house program.  Ms. Porter said that the schedule is tight, so such a program may not be do-able 
until the next school year.  Ms. Fernald said that some of the staff, e.g., teaching assistants, look for 
programs during non-teaching Wednesday afternoons.  There followed a discussion of regional 
programs which could include people from other towns, given on two different days in order to 
accommodate people on different schedules.  Ms. Eaton said that students had learned to go to the 
counselors when concerned about their friends.  Ms. Webster said that there has been a struggle to 
accommodate English as a Second Language (ESL) students due to the many language groups in 
Bedford.  Mr. Kinzer said that, according to the School Committee, students represented 30 language 
groups.   
Ms. Thorsen said that she and Ms. Eaton have to track cases of concussions and re-integrate students 
returned to class after such injuries.  Ms. Raj pointed out that the only treatment for concussion is brain 
rest.  Ms. Eaton said that specialized concussion clinics are popping up. 
Ms. Raj asked about student usage of marijuana and alcohol.  Ms. Thorsen said that usage is mostly on 
weekends.   



BOH Minutes 05-06-13  Page 2 of 3 

Dr. Brunkhorst asked whether the nurses had any equipment needs.  Ms. Porter said that she was 
talking to the schools about purchase of vision-testing equipment, but it is expensive. 
 
Mr. Wormstead asked how far along the process of transferring the nurses to the School Department 
had gone.  Ms. Porter said that talks had just started.  Ms. Eaton said that the nursing staff had mixed 
feelings about the transfer.  Ms. Webster said that currently the nurses are self-responsible and step 
right up to get things done.  Ms. Eaton asked who votes on the decision.  Mr. Kinzer said that the 
School Committee has been busy with other things and many others are involved.  Ms. Eaton asked 
who would supervise the nurses if they are transferred to the School Department. Ms. Porter said that it 
would probably be the principal of each school.  Ms. Webster said that the schools are happy with the 
way it’s running now.  Ms. Towle said that the nurses work as a unit and would be concerned if they 
were to be pulled apart: silo-ed.  Ms. Webster expressed concern that the dynamics would change. Mr. 
Kinzer said that nothing is cast in concrete; Ms. Porter agreed.  Ms. Thompson said that there is such a 
need for services in the schools, for the kids.  Ms. Eaton pointed out that not many school nurses in 
other towns are under the Health Departments.  Ms. Porter asked about guidance counselors; the nurses 
said that there is more than one counselor in each school, so they have colleagues in the building.  Ms. 
Eaton suggested that nurses could have a weekly meeting even when they are under the supervision of 
different schools.  On the question of union representation, the nurses would need to petition the union 
to change representation if they are under a different department.  Mr. Wormstead said that the town 
cannot dissolve the bargaining unit.  Ms. Raj said that the nurses should be informed when meetings 
for discussion of the issue are scheduled; so far, two letters have gone from the BOH to the School 
Committee but no meetings have been set.  Mr. Kinzer said that the issue did not originate as “we want 
to get rid of the nurses”; there was the expectation that it would benefit all concerned.   
 
Ms. Thorsen said that the nurses want pay parity with teachers and that their pay levels went halfway 
to parity in the latest contract and they want to get the second half in the next contract.  Mr. Wormstead 
said that his perception is that the schools get better budgets due to the town’s expectations for 
education.  He said that the nurses will see problems arising in the schools, e.g., influenza, before it 
appears in the general population; they are sentinels.  Mr. Kinzer said, “It sounds like the connection 
with public health may be better for the nurses.  Maybe if you were to tell the town that you prefer the 
Health Department….”  Dr. Brunkhorst said, “We’ll let you know”.  The nurses said that they will talk 
among themselves.   
 
Board members and the nurses thanked each other for the discussion; the nurses left the meeting. 
 
Mr. Kinzer said that he did not expect the nurses’ concerns.  Ms. Porter said that she did not want to 
proceed while the make-up of the School Committee was changing.  She also mentioned that there 
would be no meeting of the school Wellness Committee this school year.  Mr. Kinzer said that the 
Board was never able to get information on the health curriculum in the schools.  Ms. Raj said that she 
will follow it up with her contacts.  Mr. Kinzer said that that is another issue to discuss with the School 
Committee: do they or do they not consider public health concerns in planning the curriculum? 
 
Continued Discussion of Revised rDNA Regulation: 
There was a brief discussion of changes in wording and punctuation of the new regulation.  Dr. 
Brunkhorst will draft a brief article on the regulation for public information purposes. 
 
There followed a very brief digression on the upcoming effective date of the revised tobacco 
regulations. 
 



report on it at the next board meeting.
Ms. Porter said that the department is gearing up for the Healthy Bedford event with Mark Fenton.
Mr. Fenton was in town and together they scouted locations for future events.
Ms. Porter also reported on the Safe Route to School project. There has been a high level of interest.
A request for proposal was generated by a company called Toole, but no one has the $12,000 to hire
them. They are looking around for grants.
Mr. Kinzer attended the tick meeting in Carlisle where a good general overview of the problem was
given. He said that you can make property more tick-safe: get rid of leaf litter and brush and keep the
edge of the yard dry. There is a need to reduce the deer population. If an area can get the deer
population from 30-50 per square mile to 6-8 per square mile, there will be an 80% reduction in ticks.
Safer chemicals are now available. Most important: look for ticks when people or animals come
indoors because the illness-producing organisms do not become activated until 12-24 hours of warmth.
Cats proved a special problem because their warmth activates the disease-causing organisms and the
ticks drop off the cats and are immediately dangerous to other pets or people. Tick removers are
available in two sizes at Pet Smart. Ms. Porter said that a new Bedford and Concord intern will
prepare a tick talk, related to home landscaping.

Director's Report:
Ms. Porter said that she is applying for grants and getting them!
A hoarding case has reached a standstill. An intern will prepare educational material for the police and
fire departments, explaining the 1-9 scale for hoarding. A training will be developed and conducted
jointly with Burlington.
At Spring Brook Park, more sampling will be done after the use of flocculant to clear the water. There
is some concern about the applicability of Christian's Law; there is a question of whether Springs
Brook is a pool or a pond.

Ms. Lloyd spoke about forthcoming plans for development in the town. An uptick in the economy has
had an effect. There will be a meeting on the Comprehensive Plan on June 4f .

The next meeting of the Board will take place on May 28, 2013.

Ms. Raj moved to adjourn the meeting; Mr. Wormstead seconded the motion. Vote count: 5-0. The
meeting was adjourned at 9:45 P.M.

Bea Brunkhorst, Co-Chair Sarah Thompson

Tom Kinzer, Co- lair fl Anita Raj

Kevin Wormstead

BOH Minutes 05-06-13 Page 3 of 3


